
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation - Pastor James Smith, Wesley Chapel United Methodist Church 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (GM) 

 

Zoning Public Hearing 
5. Request by Vernon G. Clark III to rezone 31.98 acres at 1261 Crooked Creek Road from R-2 to 

AG [Map 110D, Parcel 008, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

6. Request by Precision Landworks, LLC to rezone 12.42 acres at 140 Sammons Parkway from C-

2 to I-M [Map 102D, Parcels 082, 083, 084, 085, and 086, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
7. Public Comments 

8. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - November 4, 2022 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of 2022 and 2023 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC) 

9. Request by Magistrate Judge Dorothy Adams to change Local Legislation regarding the number 

of Magistrate Judges 

 

Reports/Announcements 
10. County Manager Report 

11. County Attorney Report 

12. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Closing 
13. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

5. Request by Vernon G. Clark III to rezone 31.98 acres at 1261 Crooked Creek Road from R-2 to AG 

[Map 110D, Parcel 008, District 3] (staff-P&D)

2



Request by Vernon G. Clark to rezone 31.98 acres at 1261 Crooked Creek Road from R-2 to AG. [Map 
110D, Parcel 008, District 1].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone their property to AG in order have a small family farm and homestead. This 
farm and homestead will consist of a garden with a small number of goats, one or two cows, chickens, and a fully 

stocked pond with an arrangement of fish to feed their family. This property is undeveloped timberland and is also 
surrounded by R-2 residential properties on the north, south, east, and west. 

 
The applicant is seeking to rezone this property to agriculture to raise a limited number of goats, cows and chickens 
and gardening. According to the letter of intent, the requested uses will include the ownership of farm animals and a 

fully stocked fishing pond, which are only allowed in the AG zoning district as stated in Section 66-71 of the 
Putnam County Code of Ordinances. Although the property is surrounded by multiple R-2 residential properties, 

there are 16 agricultural properties and family related agricultural uses across the street located approximately 250 
feet away. Therefore, the proposed allowed AG uses are suitable of the zoning and development of adjacent and 
nearby properties if approved with conditions. Given that this property is located on an arterial road with mixed 

uses, included agricultural, the proposed use will have little or no adverse effect on the existing use, value, or 
usability of adjacent or nearby properties if approved with conditions. Moreover, the proposed use is compatible 

with the Putnam County Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan, which projects this parcel as future agricultural use. 
While the parcel can be used and developed as it is currently zoned, the proposed request is consistent with the 

uses of nearby and adjacent properties. Therefore, the proposed use should not cause any excessive or burdensome 
uses of public facilities or services. Although there are no new or changing conditions for this parcel or nearby 
parcels in the area, this use is supported by the comprehensive plan, and it reflects a reasonable private use of the 

subject property. If approved, staff recommends that a 100 ft natural undisturbed buffer be established and 
maintained where the property abuts the adjacent R-2 parcels. The applicant would be able to utilize the allowed 

uses in the AG zoning district as stated in Section 66-71(a) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, excluding 
the following: campground, child daycare center, landing strip private, helipad, fairgrounds and amusement parks, 
hospice care facility general and limited, kennel commercial and noncommercial, meat processing and packaging 

facility, recreation outdoor, public and private hunting club, racetrack, shooting range indoor, slaughter house, 
helipad recreational vehicle park, and zoos. Under commercial accessory uses Section 66-71(b) the applicant will 

be restricted to riding stable private, animal care limited, workshop limited and a family accessory dwelling unit 
only. 
 

 

3



Staff recommendations is for approval to rezone 31.98 acres at 1261 Crooked Creek Road from R-2 to 
AG. [Map 110D, Parcel 008, District 1]. * with the following conditions: 

1. A 100 ft natural undisturbed buffer shall be established and maintained where the property abuts 
the adjacent R-2 parcels. 

2. The applicant will be restricted to the uses allowed in Section 66-71(a) excluding the following: 
campground, child daycare center, landing strip private, helipad, fairgrounds and amusement 
parks, hospice care facility general and limited, kennel commercial and noncommercial, meat 

processing and packaging facility, recreation outdoor, public and private hunting club, racetrack, 
shooting range indoor, slaughterhouse, helipad recreational vehicle park, and zoos. 

3. The applicant will be restricted to the following uses allowed in Section 66-171(b): riding stable 
private, animal care limited, workshop limited and a family accessory dwelling unit only. 

 

 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 31.98 acres at 1261 Crooked Creek 

Road from R-2 to AG. [Map 110D, Parcel 008, District 3]. * with the following conditions: 
1. A 100 ft natural undisturbed buffer shall be established and maintained where the property abuts the 

adjacent R-2 parcels. 
2. The applicant will be restricted to the uses allowed in Section 66-71(a) excluding the following: campground, 

child daycare center, landing strip private, helipad, fairgrounds and amusement parks, hospice care facility 
general and limited, kennel commercial and noncommercial, meat processing and packaging facility, 
recreation outdoor, public and private hunting club, racetrack, shooting range indoor, slaughterhouse, helipad 

recreational vehicle park, and zoos. 
3. The applicant will be restricted to the following uses allowed in Section 66-171(b): riding stable private, 

animal care limited, workshop limited and a family accessory dwelling unit only. 
 
 

4



 

5



  
 
 

 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



File Attachments for Item:

6. Request by Precision Landworks, LLC to rezone 12.42 acres at 140 Sammons Parkway from C-2 to I-M 

[Map 102D, Parcels 082, 083, 084, 085, and 086, District 3] (staff-P&D)

20



Request by Precision Landworks, LLC to rezone 12.42 acres at 140 Sammons Parkway from C-2 to I-M. 
[Map 102D, Parcel 082, District 3], [Map 102D, Parcel 083, District 3], [Map 102D, Parcel 084, District 

3], [Map 102D, Parcel 085, District 3], [Map 102D Parcel 086, District 3].  
 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone their property to I-M in order to add a commercial building and recycle 100% 

of green waste that is brought to the property. Their business was developed to prevent thousands of acres of tree 
debris go to waste by being unused or being transported to landfills where it is dumped to decay.  The business 

would include the recycling and repurposing of green waste. Some of the uses would be grinding for mulch, 
composting, sawmill for custom wood décor, and firewood.   
 

This parcel was originally five C-2 parcels that have previously been combined into one large 12.42 acre-tract. It is 
surrounded by multiple C-2 parcels and is in close proximity of 10 I-M zoned parcels. According to the letter of 

intent, the applicant will be using heavy machines in order to grind the various vegetated materials. The use of 
heavy machinery or heavy manufacturing is only allowed in the I-M zoning district as stated in Section 66-112 of 
the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. As mentioned before, the property is surrounded by multiple C-1 and C-2 

parcels with the exception of the nearby I-M parcels. Therefore, the proposed allowed I-M uses are suitable of the 
zoning and development of adjacent and nearby properties. Given that this property is located on an industrial 

parkway, the proposed use will have little to no adverse impact on the existing use, value, or usability of adjacent 
or nearby properties. Moreover, the proposed use is compatible with the Putnam County Future Land Use 

Comprehensive Plan, which projects this parcel as future industrial use. While this parcel can be used and developed 
as it is currently zoned, the proposed use reflects the existing uses of nearby and adjacent parcels on this parkway. 
Additionally, the proposed use should not cause any excessive or burdensome uses of public facilities or services. 

There have been multiple changes of zoning in the area. In 1998, 48 acres were rezoned from residential to Heavy 
Industrial on this parkway. In the same year, there was 60 acres rezoned from R-1 to C-2 and an additional 9.93 

acres rezoned from R-1 to C-2 in 2002. Therefore, showing the consistent growth and development on this 
industrial parkway. If approved, staff recommends the applicant to adhere to the uses allowed as stated in Section 
66-112(a) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 
 

 
 

21



Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 12.42 acre from C-2 to I-M at 140 Sammons Parkway 
[Map 102D, Parcel 082, District 3], [Map 102D, Parcel 083, District 3], [Map 102D, Parcel 084, District 

3], [Map 102D, Parcel 085, District 3], [Map 102D Parcel 086, District 3]. *  
 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 12.42 acres at 140 Sammons 
Parkway from C-2 to I-M. [Map 102D, Parcel 082, District 3], [Map 102D, Parcel 083, District 3], [Map 102D, Parcel 

084, District 3], [Map 102D, Parcel 085, District 3] [Map 102D, Parcel 086, District 3]. * 
 
 

 
 

 
 

22



 

23



 

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



File Attachments for Item:

8. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - November 4, 2022 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of 2022 and 2023 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC)

62



Draft Minutes Page 1 of 4  

November 4, 2022   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, November 4, 2022 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, November 4, 2022 at 

approximately 9:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

STAFF ABSENT 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 9:00 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

3. Invocation 

Pastor Pete Mattix, Lake Country Baptist Church, gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (GM) 

Commissioner McElhenney led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

63



Draft Minutes Page 2 of 4  

November 4, 2022   

 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
5. Public Comments 

Dr. Steve Hersey commented on Senior Tax Relief with a handout and advised that he will be 

making the same presentation he gave here at our last meeting to the Board of Education on 

Monday.  He invited the commissioners to attend and added that he will be offering variations to 

his original proposal. 

(Copy of handout made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

6. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - October 18, 2022 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Ratification of Fire Truck Purchase (staff-Fire) 

c. Approval of 2023 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
(Copy of licenses made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

7. Approval of Right-of-Way Permit Application from the City of Eatonton Gas Department 

(staff-CM & PW) 

Motion to approve the Right-of-Way Permit Application from the City of Eatonton Gas 

Department. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
(Copy of permit made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

8. Approval of FY2022 Budget Amendment #2 (staff-Finance) 

Finance Director Linda Cook reviewed and explained the proposed budget amendment. 

Motion to approve FY2022 Budget Amendment #2. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
(Copy of amendment made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

64



Draft Minutes Page 3 of 4  

November 4, 2022   

 

9. Awarding of Solicitation 22-42001-002 Landfill Supplemental Maintenance Grading (staff-

CM) 

County Clerk Butterworth reviewed the bids that were received.  Public Works Foreman 

Anthony Frazier explained the issues at the landfill and answered questions. 

Motion to award Solicitation 22-42001-002 Landfill Supplemental Maintenance Grading to 

Peed Brothers at $1,278,530.17. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

Reports/Announcements 
10. County Manager Report 

County Clerk Butterworth and Chairman Webster reported on a meeting held with Putnam 

County and City of Eatonton officials and the GMC Corp of Cadets.  The Cadets are planning a 

Putnam County Community Project.  Students from PCHS JROTC will also be joining in to 

serve our community.  The meeting was to begin brainstorming some ideas for this project that 

the cadets will be planning and organizing in order to learn more about and serve our local 

community.  The workday is tentatively scheduled for April 15, 2023 and will bring over 200 

cadets from both schools to the county.  

 

11. County Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

12. Commissioner Anouncements 

Commissioner McElhenney: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Sharp: none 

 

Commissioner Wooten: advised that he received a call this week about a possible solar farm in 

southern Putnam County. 

 

Chairman Webster: provided some highlights from the Chamber of Commerce’s Legislative 

Breakfast, including a very informative report from Corbit Reynolds and Jamie Boswell of 

GDOT regarding the construction on Highways 441 and 44.  Highway 441 is ahead of schedule 

with a completion estimate of the third quarter of 2023 and Highway 44 is behind schedule with 

a completion estimate of 2030. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

65



Draft Minutes Page 4 of 4  

November 4, 2022   

 

Closing 
13. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 9:48 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

66



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Approval of 2022 Alcohol Licenses 

(good for the remainder of 2022 – will reapply for 2023) 
The following alcohol license applications (which are available for review in 
the County Clerk’s office) have been approved by the Sheriff, Fire Marshal 

and/or Building Inspector, and Tax Commissioner and are ready for BOC 
approval: 
 

Individual 

Name 

Business Name Address License Type 

Allnoor Somani 
Milledgeville Food 

Mart LLC 

101 Mays Road 

SE 
Retail Beer/Wine 

 
 

Approval of 2023 Alcohol Licenses 

 
The following alcohol license applications (which are available for review in 

the County Clerk’s office) have been approved by the Sheriff, Fire Marshal 
and/or Building Inspector, and Tax Commissioner and are ready for BOC 

approval: 
 

Individual 

Name 

Business Name Address License Type 

Mark Little 
Twin Bridges 

Landing 

611 Twin 

Bridges Road 
Retail Beer/Wine 

 
 

67

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


File Attachments for Item:

9. Request by Magistrate Judge Dorothy Adams to change Local Legislation regarding the number of 

Magistrate Judges

68



69



70



71



72



73


	Top
	Item #5.	2022-11-15 BOC Rezoning-Clark
	Clark Staff Recommendation
	Clark Rezoning Application_Redacted
	Clark 110D008LV
	Clark Future Land Use 110D008

	Item #6.	2022-11-15 BOC Rezoning-Precision
	Precision Staff Recommendation
	Precision Rezoning Application_Redacted
	Precision 102D082LV
	Precision Future Land Use 102D082
	Precision 102D083LV
	Precision Future Land Use 102D083
	Precision 102D084LV
	Precision Future Land Use 102D084
	Precision 102D085LV
	Precision Future Land Use 102D085
	Precision 102D086LV
	Precision Future Land Use 102D086

	Item #8.	2022-11-15 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 11-04-2022 BOC Minutes
	Agenda Item for Alcohol Licenses

	Item #9.	2022-11-15 BOC Magistrate Legislation
	Magistrate Letter-Local Legislation 092022

	Bottom

